NIYI MAKINDE

NIYI MAKINDE BATTLE FOR WEALTH



Copyright © 2021 by Niyi Makinde

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning, or otherwise without written permission from the publisher. It is illegal to copy this book, post it to a website, or distribute it by any other means without permission.

First edition

This book was professionally typeset on Reedsy.

Find out more at reedsy.com

Contents

Acknowledgement	v
I SECTION A	
UNDERSTANDING THE BASICS	3
BE READY FOR BATTLE	3
THE DIMENSIONS OF BATTLE	4
THERE WILL ALWAYS BE A BATTLE	
FOR CONTENTION OF SPACE	6
FIGHT FOR YOUR WEALTH	7
DON'T NEGOTIATE WITH THE DEVIL	8
GET READY TO FIGHT	9
REALMS YOU HAVE TO CONQUER	10
SEE THAT YOU WALK CIRCUMSPECTLY	12
MEN DON'T HAVE EQUAL AUTHOR-	
ITY IN THE KINGDOM	13
THE FIRST CAPITAL FOR WEALTH	14
CHAINS CAN BE BROKEN IN THE	
REALM OF THE SPIRIT	14
AGENTS OF HUGE INVESTMENT	15
THE COVENANT OF WEALTH	15
RELATIONSHIPS REPRESENT WEALTH	16
FINANCIAL FAVOUR	17
DOMINION IN THE REALM OF WEALTH	17
BEWARE OF SATANIC ROBBERS	18
BEWARE OF SELE-LIMITING THOUGHTS	18

TAKE CHARGE OF ALL YOUR BENEFITS	19
ACCESS TO HIDDEN RICHES	20
THE WEALTH IN YOU	20
YOU MUST BE IN HEALTH	21
PRESERVATION OF WEALTH	21
DON'T LOSE YOUR WEALTH	22
YOU NEED HELP	22
GENERATING WEALTH THROUGH	
MULTIPLE STREAMS OF INCOME	23
SECTION B	24
BATTLE FOR WEALTH SPIRITUAL DIMENSIONS	25
FIFTY PRAYERS OF BREAKTHROUGH	
INTO WEALTH	25
About the Author	29
Also by Niyi Makinde	30

Acknowledgement

I acknowledge the Eternal Mind that possess the treasures of all knowledge and wisdom.

To everyone that contributed to this book- Akintunde Ajibesin, Emmanuel Ojodun, Kehinde Otesile - I celebrate you all. Your investment remains eternal.

I love all pastors, leaders and members of Rebirth Global Church. You are highly honored.

I SECTION A

UNDERSTANDING THE BASICS

Anyone who tells you that he experienced a major wealth after a serious prayer session might be deceiving you. Poverty is a curse which you can break in prayer. You can blind the spirit of lack and penury in prayer. To possess a major wealth, certain principles should be combined with prayers. We engage the battle for wealth through principles and prayers. In this book, we shall be dealing with the prayer part of wealth.

BE READY FOR BATTLE

The first thing I want us to know is that when we talk about wealth or riches there are some people that have their meeting regularly. The reason for such meeting is because they want to be strategic with the way they make money. If you are not strategic, you may not get to that point that people will conclude that you are wealthy.

There is a level of wealth that if you don't engage in battle, you may not actually achieve them. Some of the people in the world actually inherited their wealth. Just like you desire to get wealth, you should desire to fight for it too. Sometimes, there

are battles to fight in order to possess somethings. You should never tell God to bless you, if you are not ready to fight some battles.

There is a level of wealth that you may not be able to have if you don't engage in battle. Billionaires in the world inherit their wealth and increase it through financial intelligence. Many people don't inherit any wealth from their parents and they want to start comparing themselves to their colleagues and friends who got wealth through their parents. Wealth transferred from parents has a way of making you wealthy overnight. The fact that you didn't inherit any wealth from your parents didn't mean you can't get it. You can get abundant wealth if you are ready to fight to get it. You don't just desire to get wealth; you should get ready to fight for it.

THE DIMENSIONS OF BATTLE

The battles are divided into two parts:

1. SATANIC BATTLE

This may be alien to twenty-first century believer. You will hear some believers say they don't have any battle. Well, I don't blame such believers. They say such because of the teachings they have been expose to for a long time.

When you fight satanic battle, you fight against satan himself. You are not fight for victory because you already have the victory through Christ Jesus. You are simply fighting from victory to enforce the victory of Christ. Apostle Paul identified demonic ranks by saying that we don't fight against flesh and

UNDERSTANDING THE BASICS

blood, but against principalities, powers, rulers of the darkness of this age and spiritual hosts of wickedness in the heavenly places. It takes a principality to dislodge another principality. A principality represents a prince in the realm of the spirit. It is through the authority of Christ that you exercise authority over demonic princes that wants to take charge of your wealth.

There are families filled with wretchedness, struggles and financial limitations. It is as though the gateway to finance and wealth is locked over such families. In such families, if someone desires to be wealthy, the person have to be extra prepared for battle because there are spiritual forces that don't want the person to get rich. Evidently, what affected others will want to affect such. As a believer, whatever hindered others from getting wealth will hinder you if you permit it. Everything is not lack of mental capacity, there are people wealthy in their mind, yet poor physically. They do all they could to be wealthy, but couldn't just get the wealth because there are forces restricting them. It takes warfare to restrict such forces over your wealth.

2. HUMAN BATTLE

Human battles are the battle you engage with human enemies. This is the battle you fight against thieves and robbers. For example, a person with landed properties may need to put on some fight against humans that claim ownership over such properties. A member of a family may rise up against a land owner to claim ownership of the land that the family had sold to you. If such occurs, you have to rise to fight for your property or else, another will take it. Any battle or fight against properties, people and places is battle for wealth. If you don't fight for your wealth, others who didn't labor over anything may claim and take it from you.

The fact is that human beings are in government. Fight against any governmental official or agency is human battle. There are wicked people in government that often misuse and abuse power. They can give the authority to ban the functionality and existence of a company. In such situation, the company will have to fight for their wealth by taking the government to court.

Sometimes, fighting against some human can be complicated and dangerous. Some people are diabolical. You don't use the judiciary to threaten diabolical people, you have to deploy the spiritual to defeat them. I believe that if you are not ready to fight for wealth, there are human and governmental elements that are ready to fight with you.

There is a level of impact and influence you cannot possess if you are not wealthy. Riches and wealth are carriers of influence. In a way, to neglect wealth is to neglect influence. In fact, there is a level of comfort that comes with wealth. A fight for wealth is a fight for comfort.

THERE WILL ALWAYS BE A BATTLE FOR CONTENTION OF SPACE

Revelation 12:7-8

[7]And war broke out in heaven: Michael and his angels fought with the dragon; and the dragon and his angels fought,

[8] but they did not prevail, nor was a place found for them in heaven any longer.

If you understand the context of this scripture, you will realize that this was not written as historical events but revelatory

UNDERSTANDING THE BASICS

account. John was enlightened to know that there was a time battle broke out in heaven that Arch Angel Michael and his angels fought the dragon and his angels, This account shows rebellion at a higher level. The Bible reveals the earth is the Lord and its fullness, the world and those who dwell in it. The Bible didn't say war broke out on earth but in heaven.

Why did war break out in heaven? When Lucifer had mobilized the angel, God wanted Lucifer to leave and not stay. Heaven is the wealth of God. He doesn't want anything against His wealth to be around him that's why He sent the rebellious out. When He sent them out, Lucifer didn't want to leave. Lucifer and his angels felt they already had a place in heaven and they don't want to leave their place for another. So they decided to fight their way. God doesn't want them to stay in heaven because heaven represents the wealth of God. Therefore, war broke in heaven because Satan was sent out. Even with the fact that God declared they should leave, they didn't want to leave. With the fact God has said they should not stay in heaven, if Lucifer and his angels had prevailed, they would occupy their space in heaven.

FIGHT FOR YOUR WEALTH

There is that battle that put you in command of your wealth. Satan didn't you to be in command of your wealth. He knows if you have wealth, you will give to the kingdom. You have to be tough in your fight for wealth. In fact, if nobody had possessed heavy wealth in your family lineage before, you will need to fightyou're your wealth. Tough times give way to tough people. The fact is that war will break out when you step out to possess

your wealth. You are the one that must not give up because if you can conquer the fight, you will possess your wealth.

Many years ago, I was praying, I saw that an old man was seated in a chair reading newspaper and wearing a glass, I saw that again after about four years. In fact it was in prayer I saw the man again the exact way I saw him years back. Same picture and postures. I was confused and sought to find the meaning of what I saw. God said to me, this is the man sitting over the wealth of your family. I had always wondered why everybody in the family would struggle to get wealth, yet only few got it. I later discovered that many of those who didn't get it didn't lack wisdom but they were contending with forces stronger than them. I had to pray ceaselessly against who I saw and suddenly while praying I saw the man fell to the ground and saw a sword dividing the man. It was when this happened that I knew I had prevailed over what defeated others. A natural person would think it was a man I fought with, but a spiritual man would know it was a spiritual prince that put on the image of a man that I defeated. Yes, we fight with diplomacy but much more, in matters of wealth, we fight in prayers. You don't win against demonic princes over wealth by arguing with them. You win against them in prayers.

DON'T NEGOTIATE WITH THE DEVIL

You don't negotiate with the devil. The children of Israel were told they were going to the promise land and their assumption was that they would just get to the land to possess it. God had to enlighten them that He had given them truly but they had to fight for it. The Israelites had to fight against occupants of

UNDERSTANDING THE BASICS

Canaan to chase them out before they could possess it. There is no wealth you want now that is not in the control of someone. You have to put on a great heart to fight so you can possess your possession.

You must never negotiate with the devil. You don't fear neither should you argue. You must know how to possess in prayers before you possess with money. This is what some real estate agents understand. Many of them have a way of fighting for landed properties by anointing such with oil or engaging in prayers over it for days so as to take possession of their possessions.

GET READY TO FIGHT

The day of battle is the days of adversity. Anytime you are going through affliction or adversity, that's the day of battle. The Bible says if you faint in the day of battle, your strength is small. It is not lack of strength that make people faint in the day of adversity but smallness of strength.

Warfare shouldn't be taken for granted. If you don't understand battles, certain things that conquered your parent will conquer you. What conquered your uncles, aunties, brothers or sisters may want to try you out, but if you put on your fight, you will win.

Often motivational speakers speak eloquently of wealthy people who have psychics, herbalists, clerics that engaged the spiritual for them. Yet, these speakers will justify these wealthy moguls as some smart people. Don't be deceived, there is more to life than you see on the surface.

The children of Israel had to engage in battle before they possess their wealth. They fought in the promised land to possess the wealth God has given to them. You must stand your ground that whatever has conquered others in your family such must lose their effects on you.

REALMS YOU HAVE TO CONQUER

There are three realms you have to conquer. If you can conquer these three realms, you will definitely have wealth in excess. What are the realms?

- 1) Realm of the spirit
- 2) Realm of your mind
- 3) Realm of humans

David acquired wealth but fought battles before the possess all that wealth. The first wealth Solomon got was the wealth of his father. A person like Solomon may say you don't need to fight any battle to get wealth but a person like his father David will never tell you not to fight battle to get wealth. David fought sixty-six battles and never lost one. David engages in many warfare. A person like David won't tell you not to fight for wealth, it is a person like Solomon that may tell you not to fight. Anyone who didn't fight to get wealth cannot tell you to engage in battle for wealth. You can only teach or explain better, the things you have experienced.

When demonic powers stand on your path, there is no human strategy that can work. Strategy can only work after you have defeated those demonic powers that controls your potential wealth. David fought his way to the throne but Solomon didn't

UNDERSTANDING THE BASICS

have to fight. When you hear some people declare that you don't have to fight any battle for wealth, you have to know that your situation is different from theirs. Some of those people have parent who have prevailed over forces that controls wealth and have possess heavy wealth. If your parents haven't prevailed over wealth, you may need to rise up to fight for your life and destiny.

SEE THAT YOU WALK CIRCUMSPECTLY

Every time you ascend to new level, be ready for new battles. When you advance to new level, you will realize you are not dealing with matter of the past again but superior matters now. Some people scaled to new season of their lives and they spotted certain business opportunities which they invested in. But unfortunately, they lost all they had within a short time. A natural person might say such don't have financial intelligence but from a spiritual standpoint, the person may be dealing with spiritual forces more powerful than such. Have you seen people who have properties in the past and suddenly come to a point that they have nothing? The problem often is that many are too natural with life. Those who understand that life is spiritual are the ones that have mastered the art of prayers and gave themselves to it. If you have lost any wealth that belongs to you before now, what you need to do as an individual is to fight the battles to repossess your wealth. This fight is carried out first in prayers before you begin to takes strategic actions.

In building the walls of Jerusalem, Nehemiah told the people to hold their weapons with one hand and build with the other hand. In other words, they combined warfare with working. The insight from this is that while you work to possess wealth

on one hand, you have to fight to possess wealth on the other hand.

MEN DON'T HAVE EQUAL AUTHORITY IN THE KINGDOM

There is corporate authority and personal authority. Corporate authority is embedded in the name of Jesus. Personal authority is invested upon your victory over certain battles. What determines our authority in the kingdom most times are the battles we have conquered. The reason why men don't have equal authority is because of the authority God has invested on their lives. If God has deposited certain measures of personal authority over your life, it is left to you to engage it.

You have to engage both corporate and personal authority in your prayers to possess the wealth God has for you. The children of Israel were promise Canaan land, but they had to fight for it. Scripture records that the Lord fought against their enemies. It must be understood that God fought against their enemies as they also fight.

Nehemiah and the builder's also understood battles. Paul the Apostle said fight the good fight of faith. We are into a fight but it is a good fight of faith. Whether you lose is not a function of what you say but the results that comes from your life. Every new level has new battle. You have to arise to fight for your life. It is time you take what belongs to you.

THE FIRST CAPITAL FOR WEALTH

The first capital of wealth is idea. Idea is the imagery wealth. Some people are poor not because they don't have money but for lack of ideas. In fact, if you have money and you don't have ideas, you will end up becoming poor. Wealth is not about money or properties but ideas. It's the idea that helps you to turn your properties to wealth.

CHAINS CAN BE BROKEN IN THE REALM OF THE SPIRIT

There are certain prayers we pray and people wonder if those prayers are scriptural. The fact is that what you don't know, you don't know. I know am a new creation, but I am also aware that the kingdom of hell will contend with the church, but cannot prevail. The devil cannot prevail against you, but you have to stand your ground.

Chains in the realm of the spirits are thoughts in the physical. Demonic world use thoughts to tie people down which hinders them from progressing into their wealth.

Some people are too intellectual but the fact that we are knowledgeable and educated doesn't mean we shouldn't know the dimension of warfare. We are in the wicked world. We are in a world where the PhD you have is not respected by wicked forces. You should be spiritual and intellectual at the same time. I advocate the need for education. But intellectualism must not push you against spirituality.

AGENTS OF HUGE INVESTMENT

There are agents of wealth. God can direct them your way. These are people with insight into profitable investment. When this kind of people come your way, you need to maximize their supply effectively so you can come into wealth. Sometimes, these agents may not come as a person but information. The information you have are agents of investment to you. I wrote a book titled **Wisdom for all round.** In that book, I wrote several things and one of the things I wrote is **wisdom for wealth**. You can get the book to know more about this or also get the book I wrote on **financial prosperity**.

THE COVENANT OF WEALTH

You should enter the covenant of wealth and the way you enter into this covenant is through tithing. As an individual, don't joke with your tithing because God has already done his part, it is left to you to do your path. You should give yourself to tithing because you enter the covenant of wealth through tithing.

The covenant of wealth is about you doing your part, while God also does His part. Covenant means agreement. It's an agreement between a man and God. God is ready to give the wealth, so, He initiate a covenant to make it work. God in the covenant enters into agreement that He will give wealth, if they will give their tithe. In other words, God will give you wealth and riches, but expects you to give back ten percent of all He has given you to Him.

Tithing is one of the ways through which you engage the

battle for wealth. You are fighting for wealth every time you give your tithe. When you give your tithe, you have fulfilled your part of the covenants. Evidently, God will fulfill His part of the promise when you give your tithe. Your tithe will cause God to release the blessing of more wealth and protection for your present wealth. Henceforth, fight your wealth battle through your tithe.

RELATIONSHIPS REPRESENT WEALTH

There are different kinds of relationship - spiritual relationship, political relationship, academic relationship, financial relationship among others. All are what represent wealth.

If I know the relationship that you keep, I can predict the wealth that you will have. The battle for wealth is also the battle for quality relationship. This is where learning about relationship principles come in. All wealth comes from God through men. The wealthy place in the scripture refers to quality wealthy relationship. The circle of wealthy people is the wealthy place.

The way you fight to sustain relationship that represents wealth to you is not by prayer alone, but by engaging principles that sustains relationship. If you are not friendly, selfless, generous, how do you expect to sustain quality relationships. If you don't know how to show honor to others, how do you expect wealthy relationship to be sustained in your life.

All quality relationship thrives on contribution. You have to give to any relationship for it to produce. You may not get wealth out of any relationship you are not ready to contribute a part of your wealth.

FINANCIAL FAVOUR

When people pick interest in you and they want to give you money and properties freely, what is actually at work for you is favor. If all you have in your life are what you bought with your money, you are limited unknowingly. There are things people should give you naturally without being forced or manipulated. Everyone needs financial favor. Even if you have the money, you shouldn't use your money to buy everything in your life. Some things should naturally come into your life by favor.

There is a favor that gives wealth. Some people got wealth by favor. Battle for wealth is also activation of favor.

DOMINION IN THE REALM OF WEALTH

There is such thing known as dominion in the realm of wealth. The realm of wealth is the space and position where wealth is controlled. Having the power to get wealth is different from having wealth itself. The God that gives the power can also give the wealth. Dominion in the realm of wealth is about control wealth. Those who control wealth are those who have abundance of it.

You must control wealth in your life. One of the reason you have to engage in battle for wealth is not just to have wealth but to control it. God must put you in a position to control wealth. Those who control wealth can decide to award contract, sell

land and give out properties without feeling it.

BEWARE OF SATANIC ROBBERS

There are some robbers, that comes to steal the wealth and riches of a person. There are some demonic entities they are robbers and spiritual thieves which come in form of losses, sicknesses, debts, and so on. Anything that can take away your wealth is a satanic robber. There are people who when they have a dream of someone stealing something from them, they end up losing certain property.

I remembered there was a time in my life I lost something which has to do with riches and wealth in a way. Afterwards, the Lord enlightened me to know what happened. I remembered that I had a dream that my phone was stolen from me. I didn't take it seriously but I never forget that dream. Any dream you remember in your consciousness could be God's communication to you. After three or four weeks, certain events happened that I had to go to God in prayers. Even though those properties were lost then, I learned through that that there are some demonic spirits that steal people's wealth.

BEWARE OF SELF-LIMITING THOUGHTS

Have you heard someone who said "I don't want to build too many buildings or lands in my life, if I should build one house, am okay?" The mind of the person has been configured to limit his wealth. Having too many landed properties or buildings isn't extravagant, it is about having plenty wealth.

I once heard a billionaire said he has one hundred and eightyseven houses. I thought within me that that man can't know sleep. It was later I discovered that such assumption isn't correct. With effective quality system, you will be able to manage such wealth. Don't be deceived, you can have plenty wealth and still be peaceful if you can set up a management that will help you manage your wealth.

I believe that the thought of having one house or a plot of land is demonic. Satan ejected that into your heart. The thought of having one house is a limitation to your life. When Satan and God want to bring certain things to your life they will bring a word or thoughts. Wealthy people don't have one house; they don't have one plot. Wealth is about having more. You cannot have more until your mind is open. You should think about more houses and companies with many workers.

TAKE CHARGE OF ALL YOUR BENEFITS

When God gives us certain benefits, He expects us to take charge of all the benefits. When He puts us in certain positions, He wants us to maximize all the benefits attached to that position.

I have established that one of the things that represent wealth is position of authority. When you are in leadership, you are in wealth and with time it will manifest. You don't get wealth in leadership by manipulating your way through. No! You get wealth in leadership when you treat God's wealth (people) well.

ACCESS TO HIDDEN RICHES

God spoke through the Prophet Isaiah that He will open your eyes to hidden riches of secret places. Another translation says, I will open your eyes to see the wealth that are hidden in places. One translation says it this way "I will open your eyes to see the hidden store houses of wealth and riches that are not known to the human mind." There are places that are not known to the human mind but wealth can come from there.

You have to trust God to open your eyes to see what He stores in people and places. It is possible to be around someone but your eyes are not yet opened to see what God stores in that person. Men are storehouses of God's blessings. Men are warehouses of gifts. God hides His wealth in people. When God brings certain people to your life, one of the things you must know is that the wealth of God is in the lives of those people. If your eyes are not opened to see the wealth in them, you will treat them anyhow. If your eyes are not opened, you will judge by their present condition. The present condition of some doesn't show they will be wealthy. If God opens your eyes, you won't judge people by their present condition, you will clearly see the wealth hidden in them.

THE WEALTH IN YOU

You have got to trust God to open your eyes to see the wealth in you. Every human being is a carrier of wealth. No one is created by God that doesn't have wealth within him or her. We may not have the same and quantity of wealth but we all have wealth. The parable of the talent shows that the master gave

SEE THAT YOU WALK CIRCUMSPECTLY

one, two, five, he gave them according to their ability.

When God open your eyes you will have the convictions that you are wealthy and you will see the way to bring the wealth in you out.

Trust God that this time and season, your understanding will begin to see certain things God has put in you. You will begin to see what you can do with your passion that can give you wealth.

YOU MUST BE IN HEALTH

3 John 1:2

[2]Beloved, I pray that you may prosper in all things and be in health, just as your soul prospers.

Only those who are healthy can enjoin wealth. Some are sick spontaneously, many go through pains, ailments because some spirit and power may be in charge.

PRESERVATION OF WEALTH

Your wealth has to be preserved. It is only preserved wealth that can be sustained and transferred to the next generation.

Proverbs 13:22

[22]A good man leaves an inheritance to his children's children, But the wealth of the sinner is stored up for the righteous.

According to the above scripture if the inheritance is not protected or preserved, it is not possible for that man to leave that inheritance for his children.

DON'T LOSE YOUR WEALTH

When it comes to wealth and riches, they can come and they can fly away. It's very painful when you have wealth and riches then all of a sudden, they fly away from you. Therefore, lay hold on your wealth. You keep your wealth through effective management of it. The wealth you don't manage; you will soon lose.

YOU NEED HELP

One of the things I believe strongly is that riches and wealth have a way of bestowing dignity upon a person. It can bestow honor on you. If we are talking about riches and wealth, you have to understand the place of money to coordinate both. We have heard about certain testimonies of people in the past, the God that did it in the past is still the same God.

Help is when someone decides to make something easier or possible for you. When certain help comes your way, you will realize wealth and riches come your way. Some people have the wisdom and key people, what you need is divine help.

You have to deploy angels to the four corners of the earth. The joy is that angels respond to the command of God's word and God's word is in your lips. When you declare a thing, angels will run on that word you have decree. You remember Prophet Ezekiel speaks to the four corners of the earth and wind came. If wind could come to the four corners of the earth, it means when you release things to the four corners of the earth, your word will go and gather the right help and resources you need.

GENERATING WEALTH THROUGH MULTIPLE STREAMS OF INCOME

Multiple streams of income can be opened to people. One of the ways to generate wealth is having multiple source of income. Some that have multiple source of income is by the Lord's power.

You need to be strategic by identifying a specific number of multiple sources of income you need and tender it before God.

SECTION B

BATTLE FOR WEALTH SPIRITUAL DIMENSIONS

FIFTY PRAYERS OF BREAKTHROUGH INTO WEALTH

This chapter deals with prayers. You have to engage diligently and heartily in the prayers below.

- 1) By the power of the Lord, I am empowered to be wealthy, therefore I possess the wealth of nations.
- 2) By the power of the Lord, I attract money in abundance in all major currencies in the world.
- 3) Abandoned estate of wealth that has been reserved for me, I locate and possess now in Jesus name.
- 4) The ideas that will make the wealthy to pursue me with their wealth, fill my mind now in Jesus name.
- 5) Ideas that represent more wealth and great affluence, dominate my life now in Jesus name.
- 6) Lord whatever has been blocking my mind from accessing wealth or from knowing what to do with my property, I command such to leave me right now in Jesus name.
- 7) Lord whatever has been built around me to hinder the flow of wealthy ideas to me, break down now in the Name of Jesus.

- 8) Lord whatever has tied my life down and that of my family from entering into the wealthy place, I command such to break now in the name of Jesus.
- 9) Whatever is standing between me and wealth, I command such to fall now and get away in Jesus name.
- 10) Father in the name of Jesus, the hand of the Lord come upon me now and usher me into wealth now.
- 11) Wealth creation insight and ideas that are capable of getting wealth and riches out of wealthy places dominate my life now.
- 12) The opportunities that will make the wealthy pay me with their wealth, be created for me now in Jesus name.
- 13) Agent of huge investment opportunities, agent of wealth, wherever you are on the surface of the earth run to me now in Jesus name.
- 14) Wisdom for wealth management and strategy for wealth multiplication, dominate my life now in Jesus' name.
- 15) Lord in your mercy, increase the financial relationship in my life in Jesus name.
- 16) Owners of huge wealth, run to me as helpers of my life now.
- 17) Father cause abundance financial favor to flow in my direction without ceasing in Jesus name.
- 18) Lord by your power, I have dominion and I exercise dominion in the realm of wealth.
- 19) Every demonic agents and entities attempting to steal my wealth and riches, get away from me in Jesus name.
- 29) Every force and power that brings limitations to the path of men in the realm of wealth, leave my life now, disconnect from me now in Jesus name.
 - 30) In the Name of Jesus, whatever has defeated others in my

BATTLE FOR WEALTH SPIRITUAL DIMENSIONS

family and hindered their wealth, by the power of the Lord, be destroyed over my life in Jesus name.

- 31) whatever says I will not be wealthy, I silent your power over my life in Jesus name. wealth of nations, I possess now in Jesus name.
- 32) Every force and power that draws me backwards, that hinders me from entering wealth and riches let the fire of the Lord consume such now in Jesus name.
- 33) Lord open my eyes to hidden places of wealth and riches in Jesus name.
- 34) Lord open my eyes to see the wealth you have stored in people so I won't relate with them anyhow.
- 35) Lord open my eyes to see the wealth you have put in me, hidden in me in Jesus name.
- 36) Lord whatever power, force, demonic spirits that want to resist the manifestation of the wealth God's has put in me, I come against you, leave my path now in Jesus name.
- 37) Whatever force and power that want to stand my way, influence me to make the wrong decision that I may lose untold wealth and riches, I come against such today in Jesus name.
- 38) Lord territorial force and power that have taken charge of wealth in places and territories by the power of the Lord begin to give me the wealth that belongs to me.
- 39) Every force and power that want to fight my health, I come against you leave my life now.
- 40) Lord by your power preserve whatever wealth you have given me.
- 41) Father cause your preserving power to rest upon on our wealth so that generation coming behind us can benefit from it.
- 42) Lord strengthens me to overpower all challenges that comes to scatter my wealth.

- 43) Lord moves me into that position where I begin to acquire wealth speedily.
- 44) Lord grants me the wisdom that will retain wealth and riches forever.
- 45) Lord look upon me and show me your help make it possible and easy for me to get wealth. I have the wisdom, faith, people show me your help Lord.
- 46) Angels of the Lord that are in charge of wealth and riches, be released to the four corners of the earth, Go and drag my wealth to my direction now.
- 47) Lord by your power the wisdom that handles financial opportunities, wealth that doesn't permit it to be lost, Lord released unto me now.
- 48) Every agent of the devil that may be sent to my life that may come and bring about division to my wealth I stand against such you will have no place in my life.
- 49) Lord by your power, multiple streams of income be opened to me now.
- 50) Lord makes me so wealthy that the wealthy will call me wealthy.



About the Author

Niyi Makinde is a leadership expert, quotient coach, consultant, author and a Christian minister with an apostolic calling.

His passion is to raise Christian ministers and leaders like himself, as well as to help organisations and businesses maximize their potentials. Apostle Niyi Makinde has been in Christian ministry for over fifteen years. He is the President of Rebirth Global Church, a network of churches across the globe on a mission to empower believers to fulfill their God-given tasks on earth.

He is an apostolic oversight and covering for many other ministries, networks and churches.

You can connect with me on:

- https://niyimakinde.com
- f https://facebook.com/theniyimakinde

Also by Niyi Makinde

Apostle Niyi Makinde has written many other insightful and powerful books, among which are:

- 1. Divine Instructions
- 2. 12 Laws of Divine Instructions
- 3. Breaking Life Code
- 4. The Revolutionary Apostle
- 5. The Power to Prosper
- 6. The Power to Become
- 7. 53 Laws of Excellence
- 8. Church Shift
- 9. Business Sense
- 10. Dealing with Human Enemies
- 11. Wisdom for All-Round
- 12. Wisdom Power
- 13. Prayer Force (1)
- 14. Multiply
- 15. Tithing
- 16. You Are Different
- 17. Phronesis for Dating
- 18. Dating, Marriage and Sex
- 19. Managing Divine People
- 20. The Power to Get Wealth
- 21. Spiritual Fatherhood
- 22. Managing Divine People
- 23. Understanding Honor
- 24. Flourish And Grow (1)
- 25. Faith Dimension (1)
- 26. Ministry Laws (1)

- 27. Secrets to Supernatural (Financial) Abundance
- 28. Running like the Deer
- 29. Prayer Force (2)
- 30. Making Things Happen
- 31. You Are a Seer
- 32. 79 Insights Into Favor
- 33. New Creation
- 34. Prayer Education
- 35. 20 Facts about the Human Spirit
- 36. Supernatural Visions
- 37. Understanding Church Systems
- 38. 11 Facts about the Human Mind
- 39. The Holy Spirit
- 40. Dominion in the Realm of Abundance
- 41. Soul Winning Manual
- 42. Maintaining Sound Health
- 43. Faith for Abundance
- 44. New Levels
- 45. Wisdom for Abundance
- 46. The Power of Meditation
- 47. Understanding Supernatural Dreams
- 48. Stop Multiplying in Affliction
- 49. Communication Ethics in Ministry
- 50. Ministry Ethics (1)
- 51. Warfare for Honor
- 52. Wave of Increase
- 53. Praise for Favor
- 54. Ministers Training Manual
- 55. Breaking Joy Code
- 56. The Power of His Name
- 57. You Are a wonder

- 58. Roar and Soar
- 59. The Minister and the Ministry
- 60. Grace Factor
- 61. Subdue and Dominate
- 62. Flourish and Grow (2)
- 63. Overtake
- 64. Victory over Afflictions
- 65. The Power of Patience
- 66. Stand out to Step out
- 67. Shining like the Sun
- 68. 30 Channels of Wealth
- 69. Breaking into Laughter
- 70. The Power to Dominate
- 71. Enjoying Health
- 72. Stronger than the stronger
- 73. Battle for Wealth
- 74. Wealth Transfer
- 75. Maximum Protection
- 76. The Power to Be on Time
- 77. Power Activators
- 78. The Essence of Obedience
- 79. The Power of words
- 80. Planting a Branch Church
- 81. Power Dimensions (1)
- 82. The Power to Live Long
- 83. The Power to Deliver
- 84. The Power to Bless
- 85. Raising the Dead
- 86. The Power to Heal
- 87. The Power to Separate
- 88. Your Reality Today (Yoreto)